
 

 
 

 

 
 

To: Councillor Yuill, Convener; Councillor Allard, Vice Convener; and Councillors 
Blake, Greig, Houghton, Malik and Radley. 

 

 

Town House, 
ABERDEEN, 10 August 2023 

 
 

URGENT BUSINESS COMMITTEE 

 

 The Members of the URGENT BUSINESS COMMITTEE are requested to meet in 
Council Chamber - Town House on FRIDAY, 11 AUGUST 2023 at 10.00am. 
 

This is a hybrid meeting, therefore attendance is also available via Teams. 

  

 

JENNI LAWSON 

INTERIM CHIEF OFFICER - GOVERNANCE (LEGAL) 
 

 
B U S I N E S S 

 

 DETERMINATION OF URGENT BUSINESS 

 

1   Determination of Urgent Business   
 

 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND TRANSPARENCY STATEMENTS 

 

2   Declarations of Interest and Transparency Statements   
 

 BUSINESS 

 

3   LAPFF Nomination - RES/23/271  (Pages 3 - 12) 
 

 
 

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 

Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact  

Martyn Orchard - morchard@aberdeencity.gov.uk  
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

 
COMMITTEE URGENT BUSINESS 
DATE 11 AUGUST 2023 
EXEMPT NO 

 
CONFIDENTIAL NO 

 
REPORT TITLE LAPFF NOMINATION 
REPORT NUMBER RES/23/271 
DIRECTOR 

 
STEVEN WHYTE 

CHIEF OFFICER JONATHAN BELFORD 
REPORT AUTHOR LAURA COLLISS  
TERMS OF REFERENCE 1 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 

1.1 To seek approval for nomination of an Elected Member representative to the 
Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF) on behalf of the North East 

Scotland Pension Fund.  
 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

That the Committee:- 
 

2.1 agree whether to nominate an Elected Member to the LAPFF Executive, noting 
that this is on behalf of the North East Scotland Pension Fund and therefore 
must be within the membership of the Pensions Committee for the reasons 

outlined in the main body of the report;  
2.1.1 that if a nomination is to be made, consider those nominated and agree a  

nominee, noting that it is a requirement of the LAPFF that the Convener of the 
Pensions Committee sign the nomination form;  

2.1.2 note that, if the nominee is accepted by LAPFF, the Pension Fund will pay for 

necessary travel costs associated with the membership of the Executive; and 
2.2 note that the Pensions Committee will be asked to determine this nomination 

prior to the summer recess in future years, and that the Committee Business 
Planner will be adjusted accordingly. 

 

 
3. CURRENT SITUATION 

 

3.1 See attached main report. 
 

 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 
 

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 There will be financial costs for travel costs associated with membership of the 
LAPFF Executive as set out in the main report. Necessary costs will be met by 

the Pension Fund. 
 

 
5.  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 

5.1 Aberdeen City Council has a range of statutory responsibilities in respect of its 
role as administering authority for the North East Scotland Pension Fund.  

There are no direct legal implications arising from the recommendations in this 
report. 

 

 
6.   ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1  There are no direct environmental implications arising from the  
recommendations of this report. 

 
 
7. RISK 

 

7.1 The Pension Fund maintains its own Risk Management Policy and regularly 

updates its Risk Register in line with change. This is reported quarterly to the 
Pensions Committee. 

 
  

Category Risks Primary 
Controls/Control 

Actions to achieve  
Target Risk Level  

*Target 
Risk Level 

(L, M or H) 
 

*taking into 
account 

controls/control 

actions 

 

*Does 
Target 

Risk Level 
Match 

Appetite 

Set? 

Strategic 

Risk 
Lack of 

effective risk 
controls in 

relation to 
the Fund 
Strategy. 

The Fund maintains its 

own Risk Management 
Policy and regularly 

updates its Risk 
Register in line with 

change. This is reported 

quarterly to the 
Pensions Committee. 

L Yes 

Compliance No 

significant 
risks 

identified. 

N/A N/A N/A 

Operational No 

significant 
risks 

identified. 

N/A N/A N/A 

Page 4



 
 

Financial There will be 

travel costs 
associated 
with LAPFF 

participation. 

These costs will be 

included within the 
Pension Fund budget. 

L Yes 

Reputational Failure to 
nominate an 

Executive 
member 

could have 
a negative 
impact on 

the 
reputation of 

the Pension 
Fund. 

The Pension Fund will 
seek to agree a 

nomination before the 
deadline set by LAPFF 

in future. 

L Yes 

Environment 
/ Climate 

No 
significant 

risks 
identified. 

N/A N/A N/A 

 

 
8.  OUTCOMES 

8.1 The proposals in this report have no impact on the Council Delivery Plan. 

 
9. IMPACT ASSESSMENTS 

 
 

Assessment Outcome 

 

Integrated Impact 
Assessment 

 

Not required 
 

Data Protection Impact 
Assessment 

Not required 
 

Other N/A 
 

 
 
10. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
10.1 None 

 
 
11. APPENDICES  

 
11.1 None 

 
 

Page 5



 
 

12. REPORT AUTHOR CONTACT DETAILS 

 
Name Laura Colliss  
Title Pensions Manager 
Email Address LColliss@nespf.org.uk 
Tel 01224 067109 

 

Page 6

mailto:LColliss@nespf.org.uk


 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

Urgent Business Report 

  
August 2023 

 
 
  

Page 7



 

1. Background 
 

1.1   Local Authority Pension Fund Forum 
  

The Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF) exists to promote the long-term investment 
interests of member funds and beneficiaries and to maximise their influence as stakeholders 

whilst promoting the highest standards of corporate governance and corporate responsibility 
at investee companies. Formed in 1990 LAPFF brings together a diverse range of 87 Local 

Authority Pension Funds and seven pools in the UK with combined assets of over £350 billion. 
 
For LAPFF and its members, corporate responsibility and long-term shareholder value are two 
sides of the same coin. LAPFF’s members have investments in many of the largest global 
companies. Working together with the majority of the UK’s local authority pension funds and 
pool companies, LAPFF leads the way on issues such as executive pay, reliable accounting and 
a just transition to a net zero economy, along with significant and tangible improvements in 
the practices of some of the world’s biggest corporations. 
 
Each year the Forum engages with hundreds of companies, many directly with company 
chairs. This is made possible by building trust and having a two-way dialogue about corporate 
responsibility. LAPFF’s focus is on improving the policies and practices of companies, which 
they believe is best achieved by having constructive but robust conversations. This approach 
is not always successful and progress can be too slow. When this happens the LAPFF escalate 
their engagements. This may include providing voting recommendations to members for 
company AGM proposals directly to effect change. To leverage engagement outcomes, LAPFF 
often work with other asset owners and managers. 
 

The Forum participates in several multi-trillion pound collaborations to amplify their voice 
and accelerate change. LAPFF’s understanding of problems facing companies and ability to 

voice concerns is enhanced by also engaging with company stakeholders. 
 

For LAPFF’s responsible investment objectives to be relevant in a rapidly changing economy 
they have to stay ahead of emerging trends, alongside the provision of training also supports 

members in their own responsible investment activities . 
 

1.2 Scheme of Governance 
 
Terms of Reference for 18. Pensions Committee: 
 

“6. Outside Bodies. The Committee shall determine appointments and nominations to the 
Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF) and other outside bodies relevant to its remit.” 
 

The extension of time offered by LAPFF for nominations (from 7 August to 11 August) to be 
received did not provide sufficient time to call for a special meeting of the Pensions 

Committee therefore an Urgent Business Committee has been requested. 
 

Page 8



 

1.3 Administering Authority of the NESPF Current Position 
 
The current Council approved position was agreed at the Council meeting on 26 April 2023 

which states that “4) it is appropriate that officers from NESPF represent the Fund in 
relationships with LAPFF.” 

 
At present the membership of the Pensions Committee is made up predominantly by 

Members from the Partnership following the meeting of Council on 26 April 2023 (Committee 
Places COM/23/116), where it agreed: 

 
“(ii) to agree that the Partnership would appoint the appropriate number of members to the 

Pensions Committee in line with the vacancies on the Committee; and 
 

iii) to agree that should members of the Labour group, or independent members wish to 
subsequently agree to take up their vacated positions and serve on the Pensions Committee, 

that their nomination be brought to the appropriate meeting of Council or Urgent Business 
Committee to have their positions reinstated.” 
 

2. LAPFF Executive 
                                
LAPFF aims to assist and protect member pension funds by promoting the highest standards 

of corporate governance. Being part of the executive enables members to play a prominent 
role in delivering that mission. Executive membership provides the opportunity to shape the 

strategic direction of LAPFF as an organisation and to participate in engagements with 
companies on issues ranging from climate change to employment standards and human rights 

to executive pay.  
 

Executive members oversee and contribute to the work of LAPFF through quarterly executive 
meetings, participating in meetings with company chairs and attending AGMs, and more 

generally supporting initiatives undertaken by LAPFF. The work of the executive is supported 
by LAPFF’s research and engagement partner who provide executive members with materials 
to give information and insights into responsible investment and engagement issues and to 
reduce the time pressures on the executive. 

 
The executive committee is a management body comprised of members, including councillors 
and other pension committee members, officers from funds and pool representatives. The 

executive sets the strategic priorities for LAPFF, promotes and protects LAPFF’s reputation, 
and provides oversight of LAPFF’s work. 

 
The executive discusses and agrees materials, including on engagement priorities, before they 

go to the membership at business meetings. It also has the power to make decisions on behalf 
of the Forum that do not need to go to wider membership, including regarding approval of 

AGM voting alerts. The executive’s role also includes ensuring that LAPFF activities are 
delivering the agreed workplan within the budget. 

 

Page 9



 

LAPFF is marked out as an investor organisation because it is led by its member funds. Rather 
than third parties engaging companies on its behalf, LAPFF does the engagement work itself 
as asset owners. That way, LAPFF can manage and lead engagements according to its 
priorities. Being part of the executive provides members with the opportunity to represent 
the Forum in engagement meetings with investee companies. Following these meetings 
executive members have the opportunity to give feedback to the membership at business 
meetings.  

 
The executive meets at least four times a year and there are a further four business meetings 

and an AGM with the wider membership. The current plan is for the remaining meetings 
during 2023 to be held virtually and a further decision will be made by the Executive on 

whether the meetings scheduled in 2024 will continue to be totally virtual. Those elected to 
the executive are expected to attend the majority of those meetings. Executive members are 

expected to maintain appropriate skills in responsible investment and stewardship and abide 
by the Forum’s conflicts of interest policy. Members are also encouraged, depending on 

individual’s availability, to participate in LAPFF initiatives and company engagements.  The 
LAPFF Business meetings are hybrid and this should continue to be the case in 2024. 
 
Executive members are supported by the LAPFF’s research and engagement partner, PIRC. 
The PIRC team provides members with reports for the executive meetings, which cover policy 
issues (engagement themes and sectors), updates on engagement activity and progress 
against the workplan. Executive members undertaking policy-related or company 
engagement meetings will be provided with a briefing document and supported by a member 
of the PIRC team in the meeting. For a new executive member’s first engagement meeting, 
another member of the LAPFF executive will lead the meeting and provide advice. For a 
collaborative meeting with other investors, support will be provided by the lead investor or 
organiser, as well as by PIRC staff. 
 
 

Executive Committee Member Role Specification 
 

1. Role of the Executive Committee 
 

 Set LAPFF’s strategic goals and ensure the necessary financial and human 
resources are in place to meet LAPFF’s objectives. 

 Make recommendations and provide advice to the Business Meeting regarding 
work priorities and manage the annual research and engagement work 

programme.  

 Coordinate the work of all contractors undertaking work for LAPFF. 

 Promote the work of LAPFF among colleagues in the pensions, investment and 
local authority communities, where appropriate. 

 Oversee the governance of LAPFF. For more information on the governance 
aspects of LAPFF and the Executive Committee, please consult the LAPFF 

Constitution. 
 

2. Role of Executive Members 
 

Page 10



 

 Allocate sufficient time to read and reflect on meeting papers and attend 
Executive Committee and Business meetings.  

 Contribute to Executive Committee discussions and decisions regarding LAPFF 
strategy, the annual work plan and budget, recommendations in papers for 
discussion and responses to consultations.  

 Consider and suggest new ideas and strategies for engagement. Participate in 
appropriate training sessions as required.  

 Monitor and identify key risks or trends that may affect LAPFF’s work, brand or 
reputation. 

 Represent LAPFF in company engagement meetings, at annual general 
meetings, or external events, where practicable. 

 Assist the Forum Officer with recruitment and retention of LAPFF members. 
 Protect and enhance LAPFF’s brand and reputation as the leading collaborative 

shareholder engagement group in the UK. 
 Be familiar with LAPFF’s policies with regard to environmental, social and 

corporate governance issues and make efforts to promote these policies where 
appropriate.  

 Declare any conflicts of interest. 
 Agree that all LAPFF Executive Committee and Business meeting documents and 

papers, as well as all company correspondence (letters and meeting notes) 
remain strictly confidential, unless otherwise agreed by the Executive 
Committee. 

 

  

Page 11



 

3.  Recommendations 
 
The LAPFF are seeking an Elected Member nomination to the Executive, with a deadline of 
Friday 11 August 2023. Officers emailed Pensions Committee members in advance of this 
Urgent Business Committee meeting, providing details and seeking nominations.  
 
Elected members are asked to:  
 

 Consider whether or not to make a nomination, and if a nomination is to be made to 
agree who the nominee will be; 

 Recognise that to fulfil the role of representative of the NESPF that a nominee must 
be a member of the Pensions Committee, making a clear relationship between the 

NESPF and LAPFF, so that the insight and knowledge and skills developed through 
working with each is used to the benefit of each other; 

 Note that the Pensions Committee would normally determine a nomination as per 
Pensions Committee Term of Reference 6  “The Committee shall determine 

appointments and nominations to the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF) and 
other outside bodies relevant to its remit.” 

 Note that LAPFF has extended their deadline for nominations until 11 August 2023 to 
allow an Urgent Business Committee to make a determination; 

 Note that LAPFF require that the nomination is supported by the Convener of the 
Pensions Committee, and they must sign the nomination form confirming this;  

 Note that there are expected to be additional costs from being appointed by LAPFF 
onto the Executive and those necessary costs will be met by the Pension Fund; and 

 Note that the Pensions Committee will be asked to determine this nomination prior 
to the summer recess in future years, and that the Committee Business Planner will 
be adjusted accordingly. 

 
The specific recommendations are included in the covering report. 

4.  Financial Implications 
 

 

As stated earlier, Executive meetings are currently being held virtually and Business meetings 
being held in a hybrid manner therefore costs are currently minimised. Travel and associated 

costs will be incurred if Business or Executive meetings take place in person. 
 
There are also travel costs associated with membership of LAPFF for travel to London and 
Bournemouth for the AGM.  
 

The necessary travel, accommodation and associated costs will be met in full by the Pension 
Fund. 

Page 12


	Agenda
	3 LAPFF Nomination - RES/23/271
	LAPFF main report


